
Human Resources & Information Technology Committee

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers, 6th Floor4:30 PMWednesday, May 24, 2023

1. Call meeting to order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll call of membership

4. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

23-0568 Minutes 4/27/23. 

 

Minutes 4-27-23.pdfAttachments:

5. Public Hearing/Appearances

6. Action Items

23-0569 Request to Approve changes to address wage compression for Police 

Lieutenant and Captains using their hourly base rate vs. top Senior 

Sergeant rate and to add compensation for transports, time in court, and 

criminal guard duty. 

 

Salary Administration Policy 2023 SB.pdfAttachments:

7. Information Items

23-0572 Changes to Fringe Benefit Policy. 

 

Fringe Benefit Policy 2023 SB.pdfAttachments:

23-0574 Recruitment Status Report 5/18/23.

 

RSR 5.18.23.pdfAttachments:

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 5/19/2023

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22744
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0acf94c2-9e7a-4c65-8e25-ee7b96dde7cf.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22745
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3d3ec0f8-31aa-4df6-9ce2-0508e37b676a.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22748
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5a2db443-fd7c-4d69-a31f-1452351f419a.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22750
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=af96c2aa-09ea-4b48-b863-2c920ccd4b7c.pdf


May 24, 2023Human Resources & Information 

Technology Committee

Meeting Agenda - Final

8. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during this 

meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request 

and if Feasible.

For questions on the agenda please contact Jay Ratchman at 920-832-6427. 

*We are currently experiencing intermittent issues/outages with our audio/video 

equipment.  Meeting live streams and recordings are operational but unreliable at times .  

This is due to delays in receiving necessary system hardware components.  We continue 

to look for solutions in the interim and we hope to have these issues resolved soon.

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 5/19/2023



100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes

Human Resources & Information 

Technology Committee

6:30 PM Council Chambers, 6th FloorWednesday, April 26, 2023

Call meeting to order1.

Pledge of Allegiance2.

Roll call of membership3.

Hartzheim, Croatt, Fenton and HaydenPresent: 4 - 

SchultzExcused: 1 - 

Approval of minutes from previous meeting4.

23-0437 Minutes 4/12/23.

Minutes 4-12-23.pdfAttachments:

Hayden moved, seconded by Fenton, that the Minutes be approved. Roll Call. 

Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Hartzheim, Croatt, Fenton and Hayden4 - 

Absent: Schultz1 - 

Public Hearing/Appearances5.

Action Items6.

23-0438 Request to Elect Vice Chair.

Alderperson Fenton nominated as Vice-Chair.

Aye: Hartzheim, Croatt, Fenton and Hayden4 - 

Absent: Schultz1 - 

23-0439 Request to Set Meeting Date and Time.

Meeting date and time has been changed to Wed. at 4:30.

Page 1City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22613
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ffeaddcc-c6b5-415b-bdd5-656787f789f8.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22614
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22615


April 26, 2023Human Resources & Information 

Technology Committee

Meeting Minutes

23-0440 Request to Designate Contact Person.

Designated contact person is Director Ratchman.

23-0457 Request to Award Network Managed Services to Heartland Business 

Systems.

Recommendation to Award Network Managed Services to Heartland 

Business Systems.pdf

Attachments:

Fenton moved, seconded by Hayden, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Hartzheim, Fenton and Hayden3 - 

Absent: Schultz1 - 

Abstained: Croatt1 - 

23-0463 Request to Approve Police Table of Organization Changes.

New Police Engagement Spec.pdf

Police Community Engagement Specialist Job Description 4.20.23.pdf

Police DRAFT 4.7.23.pdf

Attachments:

Fenton moved, seconded by Croatt, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Hartzheim, Croatt, Fenton and Hayden4 - 

Absent: Schultz1 - 

Information Items7.

23-0459 Recruitment Status Report through 4/20/23.

RSR 4.20.23.pdfAttachments:

This Presentation was received and filed

Adjournment8.

Croatt moved, seconded by Fenton, that the meeting  be adjourned. Roll Call. 

Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Hartzheim, Croatt, Fenton and Hayden4 - 

Absent: Schultz1 - 

Page 2City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22616
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22633
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1c0e6130-94cc-4c77-8ea0-f45fde4698e3.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22639
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c758dd3e-6c46-4a39-bcd6-1b7ad0ee10ac.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=28e907fe-053d-4b12-98e0-6f70b40938f7.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=55381d3f-e12a-4f3c-908b-4eb2a556fa20.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22635
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cdd9cb3e-5905-46bd-8ad0-9dc61404442e.pdf


 

Page 1 of 6 

 
CITY OF APPLETON  

PERSONNEL POLICIES 

 
TITLE: 

SALARY ADMINISTRATION 
 
ISSUE DATE: 
 

 
LAST UPDATE: 
October 2022 

 
SECTION: 
Human Resources 

 
POLICY SOURCE:  
Human Resources Department 

 AUDIENCE: 

All regular full and part-time employees 
covered by the Non-represented 
compensation plan. 
Excludes represented employees. 

 
TOTAL PAGES: 6 
 

 
Reviewed by Legal Services 
Date:  

 
Committee Approval Date:  
 

 
Council Approval Date: 
11/2/22 
 

 
I. PURPOSE 

To outline the guidelines utilized for administration of the compensation plan. 
                            

II. POLICY 

It is the policy of the City of Appleton to provide competitive compensation to attract and retain 
competent staff and to encourage and reward performance within the financial resources available.   
 

III. DISCUSSION 

The City of Appleton is committed to rewarding team members in a fair and consistent manner, we offer 
compensation and rewards that support equity and align with our diversity, equity, and inclusion values.  
We aim to attract and retain employees to contribute to the success of the organization.    This policy is 
subject to change with approval of the Common Council.  The Human Resources Director shall be 
responsible for the administration of the compensation policy.   
 
DEFINITIONS 
A. Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA):  A federal act that sets minimum wage, overtime pay, equal pay, 

record keeping and child labor standards for employees who are covered by the act and who are not 
exempt from specific provisions. An employee classified in the compensation plan as “Exempt” is 
not eligible for the overtime compensation provisions of FLSA. 
 

B.  Base Pay: An employee's initial rate of compensation, excluding extra lump sum compensation, 
shift differential etc.  An employee's base pay can be expressed as a base hourly rate of pay or as an 
annual salary. 

 
C. Position Analysis Questionnaire (PAQ): A job analysis that outlines the responsibilities and the 

requirements necessary to perform the functions of the position. The PAQ is utilized to evaluate the 
position responsibilities for allocation to the appropriate pay grade.   

 
 

D.  Compensation Plan: A schedule of pay ranges listing the job classifications and 
minimum/maximum rates.  All regular positions shall be placed in one of these ranges based on a 
PAQ and point factor job evaluation. 
 

E. Emergency:  For purposes of this policy, an emergency shall be defined as an unplanned, significant 



 

Page 2 of 6 

event that affects the operation, or service level of the department (as determined by the Department 
Director and/or the Mayor)  

 
F. Interim Assignment:  When an employee is assigned to a different position on a temporary basis, 

because of a vacancy.   
 

G. Non-base pay adjustment:  Pay adjustments generally in the form of a lump sum or other forms that 
do not increase the employee’s base pay. 

 
H.  Red-circled: The maintenance of an employee’s pay rate above the established range maximum.  An 

employee whose pay rate is at or above the range maximum may be eligible for a non-base 
performance adjustment.   

 
I. Midpoint:  The center of an open pay range.  The midpoint provides a reference point to measure 

progression within the pay range. 
 

 
IV. PROCEDURES 

A. DETERMINATION OF PAY RANGES 

The compensation plan shall be based on the principle of equal pay for equal work.  Pay ranges 
within the compensation plan shall be determined with regard to factors including, but not limited to: 
training and ability; level of work; physical demands; independence of actions; supervision 
exercised; experience required; human relations skills; working conditions or hazards and impact of 
errors; and prevailing rates of pay for similar jobs in public and private employment as determined 
by the City. 

 
B.       ENTRANCE PAY RATE     

                                          
The entrance pay rate shall be within 60% of the minimum of the pay range.  All appointments 
(including department heads) above the 60% must be authorized, in advance, by a majority of the 
Mayor, Human Resources Committee Chair and Human Resources Director.  

 
 

C. RECLASSIFICATION  
  

The Position Classification Review Process is the method for determining pay range assignment of 
new positions or reclassification actions involving substantial changes in the duties and 
responsibilities of an existing position or external market changes. 

(a) Classification or Reclassification Consideration 

A request for reclassification of a current position or the classification of a new position may be 
initiated by a department director, or by the Human Resource Director.  Requests for 
reclassifications may occur throughout the year as positions are created or become vacant.  
 
Reclassification consideration for existing positions requires that the employee and the department 
director document substantial changes in existing duties since the most recent review.  Duty changes 
may be from substantial, immediate reassignment of duties due to reorganization, or may be the 
result of a logical and gradual change of responsibilities over a period of time.   
 



 

Page 3 of 6 

To be considered for reclassification, changes should be stable and typically should have been in 
effect for at least six months preceding the reclassification request so that it is clear that the changes 
that exist are likely to remain for some period of time.  Reclassification will not be considered for 
temporary changes in duties. 

A request for classification or reclassification consideration must be in writing to the Human 
Resources Generalist.  The Human Resources Generalist will guide the appropriate process for a 
review. 

(b) Review of Requests 

Following internal review by the Human Resource Director, the Human Resource Generalist will 
submit the PAQ and any supporting documentation to the consultant for evaluation if the criteria for 
reclassification is met.  If the recalassification is appropriate, the consultant will recommend a grade 
assignment for the position.  The consultant may request further information. 

(c)  The Employer’s Response to the Consultant’s Recommendations 

The employee and the department director will be informed of the final decision in writing.  The 
effective date of any compensation changes will be based on the specific circumstance of the 
reclassification. 
 

D.   COMPENSATION PLAN COMPONENTS 

(a) Pay Plan Adjustment 
 

Pay Plan adjustments are typically made on an annual basis.  The Human Resources Director 
shall recommend such adjustments to the Mayor and Finance Director based on the general level 
of pay adjustments in the relevant job markets where the City competes.  These adjustments are 
also made in consideration of general changes in cost-of-living indices. 

 

The adjustment takes the form of an adjustment to pay plan with the goal of maintaining market 
competitiveness of the pay plan. 
 
No increase will be made to an employee’s pay as a result of a pay plan adjustment. 
 

(b) Merit increase  
 

The amount allocated for merit increase shall be established each year by the Mayor and 
included in the annual budget, subject to approval by the Common Council.  Merit increases will 
be awarded to all employees that meet or exceed their goals and departmental expectations. 

 
E.   PAY RATE ADJUSTMENTS 

The Human Resources Director and the applicable Department Director shall determine the pay 
status of an employee based on the following:                                                   

 (a)  Transfers - When an employee is transferred from one class to another with a common pay 
range, the employee shall continue to receive the same pay rate unless a different rate is deemed 
appropriate.  

 (b)  Promotion - When an employee is promoted from one class to another having a higher pay 
range, the employee shall receive an increase as deemed appropriate. For consideration of 
placement into the new pay range, such factors as the average value of overtime lost, average 



 

Page 4 of 6 

value of extra hours worked in a non-exempt capacity as well as other internal and external 
factors shall be considered.                  

 (c) Demotion - When an employee accepts a position in a lower pay grade for any reason, a rate of 
pay shall be determined. For consideration of placement into the new salary range, such factors 
as experience, qualification, length of service, average value of overtime lost and the level of pay 
similar to employees in the pay range shall be considered.                                   

 (d) Upward Re-Classification - When an employee’s position is reclassified into a higher pay grade, 
the reclassification shall be treated the same as a promotion under (b) above.  

 (e) Downward Re-Classification - When an employee’s position is reclassified into a lower pay 
grade, the reclassification shall be treated the same as (c.) above.  

 
 (f) Equity Adjustments 
 Equity adjustments are salary changes outside of the normal salary programs (as listed above) to       
remedy salary issues such as external pressure in high demand areas, internal salary                            
compression, and/or retention considerations. Equity adjustments may also be used when                   
additional duties are added. 
 

F.   MINIMUM AND MAXIMUM RATES                          

Generally, an employee shall be paid within the pay range of their position. Library substitute 
positions may only advance to the midpoint of the pay scale. 

An employee may be paid below the minimum of their pay range as the result of not receiving a pay 
adjustment due to their performance. 
 
An employee who receives a base pay adjustment cannot exceed the maximum of their pay range.  
An employee who is at the maximum of their pay range may be eligible for a lump sum payment as 
a method to recognize performance. 

 
      In the event of a reclassification, or re-evaluation of a pay range that results in an employee’s pay 

falling outside the maximum of the newly assigned pay range, such employee’s pay rate may be red-
circled. 

     

 G.  OVERTIME 

(a) Employees in the Compensation Plan who meet the exemption under the Fair Labor Standards 
Act shall be exempt from all premium pay provisions except as otherwise outlined in this policy.                        

(b) Employees who are required to work Sunday, not part of their regular schedule, shall receive 
double time pay.  Utility Department employees who work Sunday, as part of their regular 
schedule, shall receive double time pay. 

(c.) All non-represented non-exempt employees in the Compensation Plan shall be paid no less than 
the minimum compensation required pursuant to the FLSA, including overtime compensation on 
a time and one half basis, for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours per week subject to the 
following:  

1. Compensatory Time, Sick leave, PTO Sick, approved non-paid leave and FMLA 
non-paid leave hours shall not be counted as hours worked for purposes of 
computing overtime compensation; and, 

 
2. Scheduled City holiday hours, vacation, PTO , funeral leave, jury duty and 

approved paid FMLA leave (except PTO Sick, see #1 above) may be counted as 



 

Page 5 of 6 

hours worked for purposes of computing overtime compensation (except when 
employee is called to work, then see #3 below); and, 

 
3. Hours worked and paid at a Sunday or Holiday double time rate*, where the 

employee is also paid an additional call pay premium, shall not be counted as 
hours worked for purposes of computing overtime compensation. 

 

   *Holiday double time rate refer to Fringe Benefit Policy. 

 (c) Battalion Chiefs and Deputy Fire Chiefs who fill in for other Chief Officers, when overtime 
would otherwise be required, shall receive straight time pay for all such hours worked in addition 
to their regular bi-weekly rate.  Operations Battalion Chiefs who are required by the Chief to 
attend extended (generally more than four (4) hours) training on their off-duty time may be 
eligible for straight time pay for attendance at such training at the discretion of the Fire Chief.      

(d) Police Lieutenants and Captains will receive compensation at time and one half of the 
employee’s base hourly top senior sergeant rate when working beyond their normal schedule for 
Grants, Off-Duty Police Services, Avenue Detail, SWAT related incidents, major case 
investigations, transports, time in court, prisoner guard duty, and special events. 

(e) Overtime shall be approved in advance by the Department Director or supervisor and reviewed 
periodically by the Department Director.  Overtime shall be kept to a minimum and shall be 
utilized to relieve specific occasional peak workloads or emergencies.                                

  
 H. SHIFT PREMIUM 
  

Non-exempt employees shall be eligible for a $.50 shift premium added to their base pay if the 
employee is regularly scheduled (through shift selection or designated assignment) to work a 2nd 
or 3rd shift schedule (3rd or 4th shift schedule for Police). 

 
I. TELEPHONE CALL 
 

Non-exempt employees who are called by a supervisor on the telephone, outside of their 
regularly scheduled hours, to provide information related to the operation of the department shall 
be paid for the time actually spent on the telephone, but not less than one hour’s straight time.  
This does not apply to employees receiving the Stand-by Duty pay. 

 
J. EMERGENCY CALL-IN 
 

Non-exempt employees who have left the worksite or are in a paid leave status, and who are 
called to return to work outside of their regularly scheduled hours to handle emergency situations 
that could not be anticipated, will be eligible for a lump sum of  $100 as call-in pay. 

 
K. ASSIGNED SHIFT CHANGE   

 
(a) This applies to Utilities employees who operate on shifts. 

 
When a non-exempt employee is required to work outside their assigned shift the employee will 
be paid as follows: 

 



 

Page 6 of 6 

Employees notified for a change of assigned shift for a duration of more than one week and are 
given 48 hours or more notice shall be paid $1.00 per hour, added to their base pay, for all hours 
worked for the duration of the scheduled shift. 

 
Employees notified for a change of assigned shift for a duration of one week or less and are 
given 48 hours or more notice shall be paid $2.00 per hour, added to their base pay, for all hours 
worked for the duration of the scheduled shift. 

 
Employees notified for a change of assigned shift and are given less than a 48 hour notice shall 
be paid $50 per day for the first 48 hours and then the employee shall be paid pursuant to the 
above. 

 
The $1.00 and $2.00 premium pay shall be added to the employee’s regular base rate for 
purposes of calculating the overtime rate. 

 
(b) This applies to Department of Public Works employees who operate on shifts. 

 
When a non-exempt employee is required to work outside their assigned shift the employee will 
be paid as follows: 

 
Employees notified for a change of assigned shift shall be paid $50 per day. 

                                       
L. STAND-BY DUTY  
 

Employees who are required by their department director to be on stand-by duty (required to 
remain within a one (1) hour response area, accessible by phone or pager, etc.) shall receive one 
hour’s pay for each day of stand-by and (2) two hours if on the actual holiday (does not include 
the observed holiday).  

 
All employees required to be on stand-by must remain physically fit and ready for duty and must 
continue to abide by City policies (i.e., Drug-Free Workplace).  

  
M.   CALL DUTY - EMERGENCY RESPONSE (Excludes Directors, Deputy Directors, Assistant 

Police Chief, Police Captains, and Police Lieutenants) 
 

Any exempt employee, not on Stand By Duty, who is required to report to duty for emergency 
operations (e.g. snowplowing, water main breaks, facilities and grounds and technology issues, 
storms & other disasters) may be eligible for additional compensation in the form of a bonus as 
outlined below: 

 
 If the employee reports for work and works less than three (3) hours, the employee shall be entitled 

to $75.00 for each report. 
 If the employee reports for work and works between 3-5 hours, the employee shall be entitled to 

$200.00 for each report. 
 If the employee reports for work and works between 5-8 hours, the employee shall be entitled to 

$400.00 for each report 
 If the employee reports for work and works more than 8 hours, the employee shall be entitled to 

$500.00 for each report 



1 

 CITY OF APPLETON 
POLICY 

 
TITLE: 

FRINGE BENEFITS 
 
ISSUE DATE: 
April 6, 2000 

 
LAST UPDATE: 
December 2022 

 
SECTION: 
 
Human Resources 

 
POLICY SOURCE: Human 
Resources Department 

POLICY AUDIENCE: 

All Employees   

Excludes Valley Transit, Police and 
Fire protective employees covered 
by a collective bargaining 
agreement. 

 
TOTAL PAGES: 17 
  

 
Reviewed by Legal Services Date:  
September 2022 
 

 
Committee Approval Date:  
October 12, 2022 
 

 
Council Approval Date:  
October 19, 2022  
 

 

I.  PURPOSE 
 
To outline for employees the fringe benefits available to all employees, excluding represented Valley 
Transit, Police and Fire protective employees.    

 
II.  POLICY 
 

It is the policy of the City of Appleton to make available fringe benefits as outlined in this policy.  It is 
also the policy of the City of Appleton to provide incentives, recognize significant levels of 
responsibilities, and to attract and retain qualified employees by offering comparable benefits.     
 

III.   DISCUSSION 
 

This policy provides the current fringe benefits available.  These benefits are subject to change with 
approval of the Common Council. 

 
IV.  DEFINITIONS  
 

A. Regular Full-Time (exempt): Employees who work a minimum of 2080 hours per year or 80 hours 
bi-weekly and not eligible for overtime or compensatory time for any hours worked beyond 40 hours 
per week.  A full-time exempt employee is expected to work whatever hours necessary to complete 
the job they have been hired for.  Employees who are classified as exempt are paid on a “salaried 
basis” meaning that the person will be paid the same full salary for any week in which work is 
performed without regard to the number of hours worked.   

 
B. Regular Full-Time (non-exempt): Employees who work 2080 hours per year and are eligible for 

overtime after working 40 hours per week. 
 
C. Regular Part-Time (exempt): Employees who are normally scheduled to work a minimum 1040 

hours per year but less than 2080 hours per year and are not eligible for overtime or compensatory 
time for any hours worked beyond their standard bi-weekly hours.   

 
D. Regular Part-Time (non-exempt): Employees who are normally scheduled to work a minimum 1040 

hours per year but less than 2080 hours per year and are eligible for straight time pay for hours 
worked beyond their standard biweekly hours and for overtime after working 40 hours per week. 



2 

 
E. Non-represented: All employees whose benefits are not covered by a Collective Bargaining 

Agreement.  
 

F. Represented:  Employees whose benefits are covered by a Collective Bargaining Agreement.  Those 
include: Valley Transit Teamster Local 662, Appleton Professional Police Non-supervisory Unit and 
the Appleton International Association of Firefighters Local 257. 

  
G. Domestic Partner:  Persons without registration that meet the following criteria: 
 a.     Each individual is at least 18 years old and competent to enter into a contract; 
 b.     Neither individual is married to, or in a domestic partnership with, another; 
 c.    They share a common residence 
 d.    Their partnership must not violate Wisconsin Statutes which bar marriage between certain 

persons based on kinship and divorce; 
 e.    They must consider themselves to be members of each other’s immediate family and 
 f.    They must agree to be responsible for each other’s basic living expenses. 

 
Employees who wish to utilize the funeral leave benefits available for domestic partners must submit 
in writing to the Human Resources Department proof that the criteria listed above in (a-f) are met.  
Human Resources will make a determination on eligibility based on the information provided by the 
employee.  
 

H.  Look-Back Measurement Period:  Rules set by Health Care Reform to offer coverage to an employee 
who at time of hire wasn’t eligible for medical insurance coverage.  If during measurement period 
the employee’s hours increase to over 30 hours per week on average then must be offered medical 
insurance.  Measurement Period is the 12 months the City will use to review hours worked in the 
calculation.  Administrative Period is the 60 day period for the City to administratively compute 
hours work to know if insurance should be offered.  Stability Period is the 12 month period of time 
that once an employee qualifies must be allowed to stay on medical insurance. 

 
V. BENEFITS 
 

A. Health and Dental Insurance 
 
1.  Health Insurance: 

Regular full-time and part-time employees working 30 hours or more per week, shall be eligible 
for health insurance benefit plan options as outlined in Attachment A. 
 
Effective January 1, 2013 part-time employees who are enrolled in the City health insurance 
program shall be grandfathered and will continue to be eligible for health insurance benefits 
provided they maintain their enrollment in the plan.  If said employee chooses to drop coverage 
the part-time employee must work 30 hours per week to re-enroll. 
  

  Health insurance is effective upon the 31st calendar day of employment. Employees not enrolling 
  at this time will be required to provide a certificate of previous insurance coverage or will have to 
  wait until the open enrollment period for coverage the following calendar year.  

 
Premiums will be deducted from the employee’s payroll check.  All premiums will be taken on a 
pre-tax basis unless the employee notifies the Human Resources Department in writing of their 
desire to have the premium deducted on a taxable basis. Any payments for insurance premiums 
that cannot be taken through payroll, are due on or before the first of the month for the month of 



3 

coverage to the Human Resources Department.  Failure to make timely payments may cause 
cancellation of coverage. 
 
Employees who have a spouse who also work for the City must select either one family plan or 
two single plans. 
 
The City will follow the Health Care Reform Act look-back provision in order to determine if a 
previously not eligible employee becomes eligible for medical insurance.  The Measurement 
Period will be November 1 through October 31.  The Administrative Period will be November 1 
through December 31.  The Stability Period will be January 1 through December 31.   
 
2. Dental Insurance:   

Regular full-time and part-time employees shall be eligible for a dental insurance benefit plan as 
outlined in Attachment B. 

     
Premiums will be deducted from the employee’s payroll check.  All premiums will be taken on a 
pre-tax basis unless the employee notifies the Human Resources Department in writing of their 
desire to have the premium deducted on a taxable basis. Any payments for insurance premiums 
that cannot be taken through payroll, are due on or before the first of the month for the month of 
coverage to the Human Resources Department.  Failure to make timely payments may cause 
cancellation of coverage. 

 
 Dental insurance is effective upon the 31st calendar day of employment. Employees not enrolling 

at this time will have to wait until the open enrollment period for coverage the following 
calendar year.  

   
Employees who have a spouse who also work for the City must select either one family plan or 
two single plans. 

   
Life Insurance  

 
1.   Basic Life Insurance:  Regular full-time and regular part-time employees are eligible for term 
life insurance in an amount equal to one times the employee’s annual salary rounded to the next 
even thousand increment to a maximum of $50,000.  The City shall pay the full cost of the 
premium. 

   
2.   Optional Life Insurance:  In addition to the $50,000 term life insurance, regular full-time and 
regular part-time employees can purchase optional life insurance in $10,000 increments.  
Optional life insurance can be purchased for spouse and dependent children.  The employee must 
pay the full premium for all optional life insurance. 
 
Life insurance is effective on the first of the month after thirty-one (31) calendar days of 
employment. 

 
B. Long-Term Disability Insurance 
 

Regular full-time and regular part-time employees will be eligible for long-term disability 
insurance.  Coverage will be provided at 60 % of the employee’s salary for non-work related 
injuries or illnesses after a ninety (90)-calendar day waiting period.  The carrier must deem 
employees eligible.  The City shall pay the full cost of the premium. 



4 

   
Long-term disability insurance is effective on the first of the month after ninety (90) 
(uninterrupted) calendar days of employment. 

 
C. Wisconsin Retirement System   
 

The City shall pay one half of all actuarially required contribution for funding benefits under the 
retirement system for regular full-time and regular part-time employees, this excludes Police and 
Fire protective employees. Participation in the Wisconsin Retirement System is mandatory. 

 
D. Deferred Compensation Program (Section 457 Plan)/Roth 
 

 Regular full-time and regular part-time employees are eligible to participate in the City Deferred 
Compensation Program upon enrollment into the program anytime on or after their first day of 
employment.  Any amounts contributed to the program, which must be by payroll deduction, are 
paid for fully by the employee.  Under this plan, you may contribute money (on a pre-tax basis) 
in a tax deferred investment of your choice to earn tax deferred interest until you are ready to 
receive distributions, usually at retirement.  There is also a Roth option that must be by payroll 
deduction and is paid for fully by the employee.  This allows you to contribute money (on an 
after tax basis) to investments of your choice. 

 
E. Post Employment Health Plan (PEHP) 
 

The City of Appleton participates in the PEHP for Non-Represented Public Employees in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Plan’s Participation Agreement.  
 
1.   Monthly Contributions: 
The City agrees to contribute to the Plan on behalf of all regular full-time non-represented 
employees.  The City shall contribute for each Eligible Employee the amount of ten dollars ($10) 
per month.  

 
The City shall pay the annual administration fee on behalf of the eligible active employee. The 
procedure for payment of the administration fee shall be accomplished by a deduction and 
reimbursement directly into the employee’s account.   

 
Regular part-time employees are not eligible for payment of the annual administration fee or the 
monthly contribution to the PEHP.   
 
2.    Additional Contributions: 
In addition to the monthly contribution amount, the City will contribute upon retirement, the 
value of unused sick leave of an Eligible Employee’s accumulated sick leave balance to the 
maximum as follows: 

90 days for formerly represented AFSCME employees; 
90 days plus any accumulated physical fitness bonus incentive for Police Captains and 
Lieutenants and; 
120 days plus any accumulated physical fitness bonus incentive for Police/Fire 
administrative protective status personnel and 
120 days for all other employees 
 (For purposes of the additional contribution, an Eligible Employee is an employee who is 
qualified for an annuity under the Wisconsin Retirement System.)  

 



5 

  PEHP contributions are not reportable earnings to the Wisconsin Retirement System. 
 
Contributions to the PEHP may only be used after an employee leaves employment with the City 
of Appleton.  Monthly contributions are placed into an account that may be used to pay for IRS 
qualified expenses.  The additional contributions are placed into an account that may be used to 
pay for premium contributions only. 
 

F. Flexible Spending Account: All regular full-time and regular part-time employees are eligible to 
participate in the flexible spending account program.  Enrollment shall be January 1 of each year 
for existing employees or within thirty (30) calendar days for newly hired employees or for 
qualifying status changes.  This program allows the employee to use pre-tax funds to pay for IRS 
qualified expenses.  It also allows pre-tax funds for dependent day care expenses for children 
under the age of thirteen (13) or day care expenses for disabled dependents. 

  
G. Worker’s Compensation: Regular full-time employees and regular part-time employees shall 

receive worker’s compensation benefits based on state worker’s compensation laws, with the 
exception’s that there shall be no cap on the weekly (TTD) temporary total disability payments 
and they be compensated for the first three days at 66 2/3% following the date of injury, after the 
7 day period is met.   All protected police and fire personnel shall receive the same benefit 
afforded to the represented employees in the department. 

 
H. Tuition Reimbursement: All regular full-time non-represented employees who successfully 

complete job related continuing education courses toward a degreed program shall be reimbursed 
for fifty percent (50%) of the cost of tuition and books.  The total amount reimbursed will not 
exceed fifty percent (50%) of the amount charged by the University of Wisconsin system for 
similar courses that is paid by the employee.  

 
Library employees shall be reimbursed for up to 25% of the cost of tuition and books, paid by 
the employee, not to exceed that charged by the University of Wisconsin system for similar 
courses for graduate Library education.  

 
The department head and the Director of Human Resources must approve participation in such 
courses, in advance.  Successful completion shall mean a passing grade if the course or program 
is graded on a pass/fail basis or a grade of “C” or better if letter grades are issued.  Class 
participation will be on the employee’s own time. 

 
All tuition reimbursement requests shall be subject to available departmental funds.  
Reimbursements from other sources will offset City contributions. (ie; grants). 
 

I. Direct Deposit: All employees are required to have their payroll checks direct deposited into a 
bank or credit union of their choice.  The full amount of the deposit must go into one account. 

 
J. Employee Assistance Program (EAP): The City sponsors an EAP to help employees and those 

living in their households maintain healthy levels of emotional, work-life, and physical well-
being, and to limit the effect of personal problems on job performance. All employees and those 
living in their households are eligible to utilize resources and services offered through the EAP. 
This benefit comes at no cost to the employee or participant and is designed to provide short-
term confidential counseling and referral services, financial information and resources, legal 
support and resources, work-life solutions, and Guidance Resources Online. Services rendered 
by the EAP are provided through a contract with a private employee assistance consulting firm.  

 



6 

K. Other Benefits:  Other voluntary benefits may be offered based on the City’s discretion.  
 
VI.             PAID LEAVE   

Employees shall receive a total of twelve (12) holidays per year (this includes scheduled 
holidays, as listed below).  When a holiday falls on Saturday or Sunday, it shall be determined by 
the Mayor in November of the previous year, if service to the public will be required on the 
Friday or Monday.  If it is determined that service will be provided to the public, employees shall 
work those days as part of their normal workweek and will be given a floating holiday off in lieu 
of the Friday before and/or the Monday after a holiday to be scheduled with supervisory 
approval.  Department Directors will inform employees the November prior to the beginning of 
the following year of any variations of the following schedules.  For those employees who are 
not required to service the public as noted above, when New Years, Independence Day, or 
Christmas falls on Saturday they shall be observed on the preceding Friday and when they fall on 
Sunday it they shall be observed on the following Monday. 

 
A. Holidays: the City (excluding Valley Transit and Library) shall observe the following holidays: 
  

1. New Year’s Day 
2. Memorial Day 
3. Independence Day 
4. Labor Day 
5. Thanksgiving Day 
6. Day after Thanksgiving 
7. Last working day before Christmas  
8. Christmas Day 
9. Four floating holidays 

10. Any additional holidays granted by the Common Council 
 
  Valley Transit shall observe the following holidays: 
 

1. New Year’s Day 
2. Memorial Day 
3. Independence Day 
4. Labor Day 
5. Thanksgiving Day 
6. Christmas Day 
7. Six floating holidays 
8. Any additional holidays granted by the Common Council. 

 
  The Appleton Public Library shall observe the following holidays: 
 

1. New Year’s Day 
2. Memorial Day 
3. Independence Day 
4. Labor Day 
5. Thanksgiving Day 
6. Christmas Eve  
7. Christmas Day  
8. New Year’s Eve 
9. Four floating holidays 

10. Any additional holidays granted by the Common Council and Library Board 



7 

   
Regular full-time employees are eligible for holidays based on eight (8) hours for each of the 
above listed holidays.  Police Lieutenants and Captains who are required to work (minimum 
staffing) at least 8 (eight) hours on Thanksgiving Day, Day after Thanksgiving, Christmas Eve or 
Christmas Day shall be entitled to receive $100 compensation. and will be allowed to take an 
alternative day off. 

 
Regular part-time employees are eligible for holidays pro-rated based on the approved budgeted 
position.  If one of the above listed holidays falls on a regularly scheduled day off for a regular 
part-time employee, the employee may have the option, with department head approval, of 
taking pay for the holiday, taking an additional day off during the pay period or scheduling the 
holiday as a floating holiday to be used by December 31. 
 
Floating Holidays may be charged in one quarter hour increments and/or pursuant to 
departmental policy.  Floating Holidays must be used during the calendar year or they will be 
lost.  Department directors/ or designee shall approve the number of employees off on a floating 
holiday at any one given time, as well as how employees will pick floating holidays and whether 
or not employees will be allowed to cancel scheduled floating holidays. 
 
In order for regular full-time and regular part-time employees to be eligible for holiday pay, they 
must work their regularly scheduled work day immediately preceding and following the holiday, 
except in the case of an employee on an approved paid leave.  Floating holidays will be pro-rated 
in the year of hire and termination/resignation/retirement as follows: 
  
              Hired            Leaving 
   January-March 3  0 
   April-June  2  1 
   July-September 1  2 
   October-December 0  3 
 
 
Non-exempt employees who work on any of the scheduled holidays shall receive double time 
pay for all hours worked on the holiday unless otherwise noted in departmental policies or have 
received an additional day off as noted above.   

 
When an exempt employee is required to work one of the holidays listed above, that supervisor 
shall be given an additional floating holiday off, to be scheduled with supervisory approval. This 
provision shall not apply to Fire personnel working a 24-hour shift.      
                   
Non-represented Fire Personnel working a 24-hour shift shall be granted pay for scheduled 
holidays in accordance with the current International Association of Fire Fighters Local 257 
collective bargaining agreement.  In addition to the pay for scheduled holidays, 24-hour shift 
personnel shall be entitled to floating holidays based on the following schedule: 
 
Upon promotion or year of hire:  one (1) floating holiday 
After five (5) years of city service:  two (2) floating holidays 
After eight (8) years of city service:  three (3) floating holidays 

  
 Floating Holidays shall be charged in one quarter hour increments and/or pursuant to 

departmental policies or guidelines.  
 



8 

B. Vacation:  All regular full-time employees shall be entitled to paid vacation benefits as of 
January 1 of each year based upon their length of continuous service.  For purposes of 
determining future vacation eligibility, the year of hire shall be treated as a full year of service.  

  
Regular part-time employees are eligible for vacation pro-rated based on the approved budgeted 
position.  Regular part-time employees shall use vacation based on the number of hours 
scheduled to work on the day or days for which the vacation is requested.   

  
Paid vacations shall be provided in accordance with the following:  

   
Vacation Schedules:  Existing employees shall be placed on the schedule below effective 
January 1, 2012.  Employees will not lose earned vacation as a result of that placement and shall 
move to the next increment based on their years of service on the schedule below. 

  
 Year of hire:  Persons hired prior to July 1 of any year shall receive one week (5 working days) 

of vacation during their year of hire subject to approval of their department head or Mayor if 
appropriate and in accordance with department policies.  
 

1.    Non-exempt:  

After one year of continuous service: one week of vacation (five working days.)   
After two years of continuous service:  two weeks of vacation (ten working days.) 

  After six years of continuous service: two weeks plus two days of vacation (twelve 
working days.)   

     After eight years of continuous service: three weeks of vacation (fifteen working days.)   
After twelve years of continuous service: four weeks of vacation (twenty working days.) 
After fifteen years of continuous service: four weeks plus two days of vacation (twenty-two 
working days.) 
After twenty years of continuous service: five weeks  

 
2.   Exempt: 

After one year of continuous service: two weeks (ten working days.)   
After five years of continuous service: three weeks (fifteen working days) 
After eight years of continuous service: three weeks plus three days of vacation (eighteen    
working days.)   
After twelve years of continuous service: four weeks plus two days of vacation (twenty- two 
working days.) 
After twenty years of continuous service: five weeks plus four days of vacation (twenty-nine   
working days.) 
 
3. Fire Personnel working a 24-hour shift: 

After one year of continuous service: three days of vacation. 
After two years of continuous service: six days of vacation. 
After five years of continuous service: seven days of vacation. 
After eight years of continuous service: ten days of vacation. 
After twelve years of continuous service: thirteen days of vacation. 
After sixteen years of continuous service:  fourteen days of vacation. 
After twenty years of continuous service: sixteen days of vacation. 
 



9 

Administration of Vacation: 
 
Department directors/or designee shall approve the number of employees off on vacation at any 
one given time, as well as how employees will pick vacations and whether or not employees will 
be allowed to cancel vacations. 
 
With the exception of the year of hire, vacation credits are earned in one year and are available 
for use in the following year.  All employees entitled to three (3) weeks or more of vacation must 
schedule and take at least two (2) weeks of vacation during the year of entitlement.  All 
employees entitled to less than three (3) weeks of vacation must schedule and take at least one 
(1) week of vacation during the year of entitlement.  Employees who do not schedule the 
minimum required vacation will have it scheduled for them at a time determined by the 
department. If a department is unable to schedule the minimum required vacation for the 
employee, the time will be lost.   

                                                                
 Vacation benefits shall be charged in one quarter hour increments and/or pursuant to 

departmental policies or guidelines.  
 
 When a holiday falls during an employee's vacation, he/she shall not be required to use a 

vacation day in lieu of the holiday. 
.              

In the event an employee or family member becomes ill during an employee’s vacation, the 
employee will not be allowed to substitute sick leave for vacation unless the need for sick leave 
commences prior to the start of the approved vacation.  

 
   Regular employees who move from one position to another by transfer, promotion, or demotion, 

in the City, shall be credited with accumulated vacation leave in their new position.           
  An employee whose employment status is changed from temporary to regular status without a 

break in service shall receive vacation credits from the original date of hire.  Library employees 
whose status is changed from temporary to regular status will have their vacation based on their 
status effective date change.        

                                                                      
No credit for vacation leave shall be granted for time worked by an employee in excess of their 
normal workweek.       

                                                                      
  Use of vacation time must be approved in advance by the department head.                                    
   
 Vacation Carry-Over:  
  
 Any employee may carry over, from one year to the next, up to a maximum of five (5) days 

(forty hours) vacation.   
 
 Non-represented Fire employees working a 24-hour shift may carry over, from one year to the 

next, three (3) days.   
 

Any vacation time that is carried over into a subsequent year shall be considered the first 
vacation time used by the employee in the subsequent year.  The process at year end for 
employees who have unused vacation will be as follows: 
 
1. Any unused eligible balance up to forty hours will automatically be carried over to the 

next year. 



10 

2. Any remaining balance up to forty hours may be paid to the employees PEHP or H.S.A. 
account. (No more than a total of up to 40 hours for the two plans combined) 
  

 Any employee wishing to have their remaining balance paid to the PEHP (up to 40 hours 
 maximum), must enter the hours of the remaining balance in the payroll system on the 
 payroll that includes 12/31 and use a code of “VT” in Iseries or 822 in Munis.   
 
  

Any employee wishing to have their remaining balance paid to their H.S.A. account (up 
to 40 hours maximum), must enter the hours of the remaining balance in the payroll 
system on the payroll that includes 12/31 and use the code of “XV” in Iseries or 818 in 
Munis.    

 
Fire personnel employees who have vacation balances as of December 31, will have the unused 
eligible balance up to three days for Fire personnel working a 24 hour shift, automatically carried 
over to the next year and any remaining balance up to three days for Fire personnel working a 24 
hour shift may be paid to their PEHP account or their H.S.A. account: (No more than a total of 
up to 40 hours for the two plans combined)   
In both payout options, Fire employees working a 24-hour shift will have their shift hours 
converted to a 40 hour paid work week.   
 
All eligible vacation not used in the year in which it is available and not carried over, must be 
entered into the payroll system with the VT or XV codes for payment to their PEHP or H.S.A. 
account or the vacation time will be lost.  
 
At termination or retirement, any unused vacation will be paid to the employee in a lump sum.  
Vacation cannot be used over payroll periods to extend the last day of employment. 
 
Exceptions to the above vacation carryover and PEHP/H.S.A. contribution beyond forty hours 
and three days for Fire personnel working a 24 hour shift, may be made in unusual circumstances 
as pre-approved by the Department Director or Mayor as appropriate and the Human Resources 
Director. 
The Human Resources Director may request exceptions to the vacation provisions as it relates to 
placement on the schedule, on a case-by-case basis with a report to the Human Resources 
Committee.   
          

C. Paid Time Off:  (PTO) Employees shall receive six (6) PTO days January 1 of each year to be 
used as paid time off.  Part-time employees shall receive a pro-rated amount based on their 
approved budgeted position.  For newly hired employees, PTO days shall be pro-rated based on 
the month hired.  Employees will be allowed to carryover three (3) PTO days not used as of 
December 31st.  Any request made for PTO days shall follow the normal procedure for the type 
of leave being requested.  (e.g. vacation, floating holidays and sick leave must follow the normal 
guidelines used for requesting that type of benefit) 

 
 PTO days shall be pro-rated in the year of hire/termination/resignation/retirement as follows: 

                                                                                             
Hired      Leaving 

  January-February  5  0 
  March-April   4  1 
  May-June   3  2 
  July-August   2  3 



11 

    September-October  1  4 
    November-December  0  5 

  
Fire employees working a 24-hour shift shall receive four (4) PTO days on January 1st of each 
year to be used as paid time off.  Fire employees will be allowed to carryover two (2) PTO days 
not used as of December 31st. 
 
PTO days for Fire employees working a 24-hour shift shall be pro-rated in the year of 
hire/termination resignation/retirement as follows: 
 

                                                                                            Hired      Leaving 
  January-March   3  0 
  April-June   2  1 
  July-September  1  2 

    October-December  0  3 
     

Employees who use more PTO than they are entitled to in the year they leave employment shall 
owe the City the time back unless the employee leaves employment as a result of physician 
certified disability.  

  
 PTO days shall be charged in one quarter hour increments and/or pursuant to departmental 

policies or guidelines.  
 
D. Sick Leave:   Employees who have sick leave on the books will have that balance grandfathered 

as of December 31, 2011 and employees will no longer earn sick leave.   
                                              

Sick leave that has been grandfathered may be used for an absence due to illness of, or injury to, 
the employee or an immediate family member living in the employee's residence, unless 
otherwise qualified under the Family Medical Leave Act.   
        
Sick leave cannot be used until all Paid Time Off (PTO) days have been exhausted unless 
otherwise qualified under the Family Medical Leave Act.  Employees must use the 2nd sick leave 
bank before accessing the regular bank; 

 
1.  PTO 
2.  2nd sick leave bank 
3.  Regular sick leave bank   

                    
 Sick leave and PTO may be used for doctor or dental appointments, which cannot be scheduled 

during an employee's regular time off.  Employees are encouraged to schedule routine 
appointments that minimize the operational impact to the department. 
                                                                                                                               

 Sick leave and PTO shall be charged in no less than one quarter-hour increments provided it is 
pre-approved by the employee’s supervisor and/or pursuant to departmental policies or 
guidelines 
    
A regular employee who moves from one position to another by transfer, promotion, or 
demotion, in the City, shall have their total sick leave credits transferred to the new department.    
 
Employees who wish to utilize the sick leave benefits available for domestic partners must 
submit in writing to the Human Resources Department proof that the criteria listed above in (a-f) 



12 

under Definitions (G) are met.  Human Resources will make a determination on eligibility based 
on the information provided by the employee.  
 

E. Funeral Leave: In the case of the death of the employee's spouse, domestic partner, child, or 
stepchild, regular full-time employees may be paid for scheduled time lost up to ten (10) working 
days, but not to exceed (80) eighty hours, at the employee's regular straight time rate.  Leave 
must be taken within 60 days of the death. 

 
In the case of death in the immediate family of a regular full-time employee, the employee will 
be paid for the scheduled time lost up to three (3) scheduled workdays, but not to exceed (24) 
twenty-four hours at the employee’s regular straight time hourly rate.   
 
For purposes of funeral leave, immediate family shall be defined as the employee’s grandchild; 
mother or step-mother; father or step-father; legal guardian; sister or brother; mother-in-law or 
father-in-law; any other relative living in the employee's residence at the time of death; or the 
mother or father of the employee’s domestic partner.   
 
In the event of death of the grandparent of the employee, employee spouse, or domestic partner, 
the employee will be given leave for the day of the funeral, but not to exceed (8) hours at the 
employee’s straight time hourly rate. 

  
Fire employees working a 24-hour shift shall be eligible for funeral leave based on the following: 

Spouse, domestic partner, child or stepchild:  5 workdays without loss of pay 

Immediate Family: 2 workdays  

Grandparent: 1 workday 

Employees who wish to utilize the funeral leave benefits available for domestic partners must 
submit in writing to the Human Resources Department proof that the criteria listed above in (a-f) 
under Definitions (G) are met.  Human Resources will make a determination on eligibility based 
on the information provided by the employee.  
 

Regular part-time employees are eligible for funeral leave pro-rated based on the approved 
budgeted position. 

 
F. Compensatory Time: Non-exempt regular full-time employees will be paid overtime at time and 

one-half for all hours in excess of forty hours worked in a pay week.  Non-exempt regular full-
time employees, with the prior approval of their supervisor, may have the option of converting 
additional time worked to compensatory time off up to a maximum of 40 hours.  Request for 
usage of compensatory time shall be pursuant to departmental policies.    
 

G. Jury Duty/Witness Duty: Regular full-time and regular part-time employees shall receive full pay 
for any work day the employee serves as a juror or if subpoenaed on witness duty if the 
employee was scheduled for work.  In order for an employee to be eligible for witness duty pay, 
the reason for being a witness must be related to their employment with the City of Appleton.  
As a condition for such payment, the employee shall report for work for their regularly scheduled 
hours immediately before and following such duty when reasonably possible and shall 
immediately notify the Employer upon receipt of the jury summons or subpoena. The employee 
shall complete a Jury Duty Request form and submit it to their supervisor as soon as they are 
notified by subpoena of their requested appearance. 
 



13 

In order to receive full pay the employee is required to, upon receipt of jury or witness pay, 
submit their jury or witness pay to the City payroll office.  The payroll office will cash the 
employees check, retain the portion of the check representing per diem payments, and give the 
employee the mileage and meal reimbursement portions of the check. 

 
Employees, at their option, may use paid time off for a day of jury or witness duty and thereby 
retain the jury or witness pay as well as full pay for the day(s).  

 
VII. LEAVE OF ABSENCE 

  
 Leaves of absence may be granted without pay subject to the following conditions: 

 
Leaves will be granted at the total discretion of the Department Head and the Human Resources 
Director. Any leave request from a Library employee must also be approved by the Library 
Board. A leave of absence must be requested at least 30 days prior to the taking of such leave, or 
in emergency cases as soon as reasonable or practicable. An acceptable physician’s certification 
shall be required for all medical leaves of absences.  
 
A leave of absence may be considered for up to one calendar year. If leave is needed beyond one 
calendar year and it is related to a medical condition, then employee may be placed on an 
inactive status. Inactive status may only be considered if: 

 The employee is not permanently restricted from returning to their position. 

 There is no financial impact to the City (e.g. salary or fringe benefits) while on an 
inactive status. 

 The position will not be held vacant. 

 All other requirements under Leave of Absence in this policy are followed. 

Employees returning from an inactive status will be eligible to return to the same or a like 
position in that department, if one exists, when they are deemed fit for duty. The inactive status 
will end no later than three years from the date of leave, at which point employment will 
terminate. 

 
The employee must exhaust all available paid time off benefits prior to the commencement of an 
unpaid leave of absence. 

 
Return to work earlier than the scheduled termination of leave date may be arranged by the 
department head and the employee with the approval of the Human Resources Director, provided 
it does not conflict with the physician’s certification. 

 
Employees on an unpaid leave of absence with the City may not be employed elsewhere unless 
otherwise approved by the Human Resources Director. 

 
If an employee is unable to return to work on the date stipulated, they may submit a written 
request to extend their leave of absence, subject to the approval of the Human Resources 
Director.  If, on the date following the expiration of the leave of absence, an extension is not 
requested and granted and the employee has not returned to their position, the employee shall be 
considered to have voluntarily resigned from City employment. 



14 

 
 

VIII. BENEFIT STATUS DURING LEAVE OF ABSENCE 
 
Employees on an approved leave of absence without pay may elect to continue health, dental, and life 
insurance coverage during the period they are on leave beyond the first thirty days in addition to any 
voluntary insurance policies they may have elected.  The employee shall be responsible for paying the 
full premium(s), due on or before the first of the month, in the Human Resources Department for all of 
the desired coverage.  Failure to make timely payments will cause cancellation of coverage. 
 
Paid time off   and vacation shall not be earned by an employee during a leave of absence without pay, a 
suspension without pay, or when the employee is otherwise in a non compensable status, excluding 
approved FMLA, should such period without pay exceed thirty calendar days in any calendar month.  In 
this case, the employee’s vacation, floating holiday and PTO entitlement for the following year shall be 
pro-rated. 

  
 

IX. PHYSICAL FITNESS PROGRAM-POLICE & FIRE SWORN PERSONNEL  
 

Exempt non-represented protective status personnel shall have the option of participating in the Physical 
Fitness Salary Incentive and Physical Fitness Bonus Incentive program. 

 
All participating protective status personnel will be tested on the schedule for the represented employees 
within their respective departments, either annually (Fire) or bi-annually (Police).  

 
A. Physical Fitness Salary Incentive: 

Annual Testing:  Participating employees receiving a score of “excellent” will be paid a physical 
fitness salary incentive of 2% of base pay and those receiving a score of “good” will be paid a 
physical fitness salary incentive of 1% of their base pay until the next testing date. Such payment 
shall be in a lump sum payable within thirty (30) days of the finalization of the testing results and 
shall be calculated on the basis of 2% or 1% of the employee’s annual base pay, calculated on 
the rate of pay at the time of the test. Employees receiving a score of “adequate” or “poor” will 
not be eligible for a physical fitness salary incentive. 

 
Bi-Annual Testing:  Participating employees receiving a score of “excellent” will be paid a 
physical fitness salary incentive of 2% of base pay and those receiving a score of “good” will be 
paid a premium of 1% of their base pay until the next testing date.  Such payment shall be in a 
lump sum payable within thirty (30) days of the finalization of the testing results and shall be 
calculated on the basis of 2% or 1% of one half of the employee’s annual base pay, calculated on 
the rate of pay at the time of the test.  Employees receiving a score of “adequate” or “poor” will 
not be eligible for a physical fitness salary incentive. 

 
B. Physical Fitness Bonus Incentive:   

Annual Testing:  Participating employees shall be eligible for eight (8) hours of physical fitness 
bonus pay for each testing period that the employee receives a score of “excellent” and four (4) 
hours of physical fitness bonus pay for each testing period that the employee receives a score of 
“good”.  Employees who score as “adequate” or “poor” will not be eligible for a physical fitness 
bonus incentive. 

 
Bi-Annual Testing:  Participating employees shall be eligible for four (4) hours of physical 



15 

fitness bonus pay for each testing period that the employee receives a score of “excellent” and 
two (2) hours of physical fitness bonus pay for each testing period that the employee receives a 
score of “good”.  Employees who score as “adequate or “poor” will not be eligible for a physical 
fitness bonus incentive. 

 
The accumulated total physical fitness bonus incentive shall be paid to the eligible employee upon 
retirement (as defined by WRS) to the PEHP.  Such payment will be made in accordance with and in 
addition to the retirement benefits outlined in section V. (Benefits) E. (Post Employment Health Plan) 
and section XI. (Termination Benefits) of this policy.   
 

X. TERMINATION BENEFITS 
 

A. Retirement:  Employees retiring, with proper notice, at or above the normal retirement age 
established under the Wisconsin Retirement System and/or eligible for a retirement annuity from 
the Wisconsin Retirement System shall be eligible for the following benefits: 

a. A lump sum pay-out of their accumulated and carry-over vacation balance * 
 

b. A lump sum pay-out of floating holiday and PTO based upon the proration outlined in, 
Section IV-Paid Leave, of this policy.** 

 
c. A lump sum pay-out of their accumulated compensatory time. 

 
d. Accumulated and unused sick leave to a maximum of one hundred and twenty (120) days, 

(90 days maximum for formerly represented AFSCME employees and Police Captains and 
Lieutenants), shall be paid to the Post Employment Health Plan.  Additionally, any 
accumulated physical fitness bonus incentive for protective status personnel shall be paid to 
the PEHP).  

 
e. If the employee has completed at least five (5) years of service with the City, the employee 

may be eligible for a medical plan option exclusive of Dental.  Such medical option may be 
made available to employees and spouses at their own expense, up to the time the employee 
and/or spouse turns age 65 or becomes eligible for Medicare, provided they exercise this 
option prior to their last day of work.  

 
f. The option of continuing dental coverage for a period of eighteen (18) months following the 

month in which their retirement occurred, in accordance with state and federal laws. 
 
B. Resignation:  Employees who resign their employment with proper notice shall be eligible for 

the following benefits:   
 
a.     A lump sum pay-out of their accumulated and carry-over vacation balance. * 

 
b.    A lump sum pay-out of floating holiday and PTO based upon the proration outlined in, 

Section IV Paid Leave, of this policy.** 
 
c.    A lump sum pay-out of their accumulated compensatory time. 
 
d.    The option of continuing the medical and dental coverage for a period of eighteen (18) 

months following the month in which their resignation occurred, in accordance with state 
and federal laws. 



16 

  
C. Retirement or Resignation without proper notice: Employees who retire or resign their 

employment without proper notice (unless the reason for lack of proper notice is due to a 
physician certified disability) may be eligible for the following benefits:  

a. A lump sum pay-out of any carry-over vacation balance.* 
 
b. A lump sum pay-out of any accumulated vacation balance based upon the following pro-

ration 
 1.  Employees required to give a (2) week notice will have a reduction of 10 days. 
 2.  Employees required to give a (30) thirty day notice will have a reduction of 30 days. 

 
c. Floating holiday and/or PTO** 

 
d. Employees will receive a lump sum pay-out of their accumulated compensatory time. 

 
e. The option of continuing the medical and dental coverage for a period of up to eighteen (18) 

months following the month in which their retirement or resignation occurred, in accordance 
with state and federal laws. 
 

f. Accumulated and unused sick leave to a maximum of one hundred and twenty (120) days, 
(90 days maximum for formerly represented AFSCME employees and Police Captains and 
Lieutenants), shall be paid to the Post Employment Health Plan.  Additionally, any 
accumulated physical fitness bonus incentive for protective status personnel shall be paid to 
the PEHP).  

 

D. Termination:  Employees benefits: 

a. A lump sum pay-out of any carry-over vacation * 
 

b. Floating holiday and/or PTO** 
 

c. Employees will receive a lump sum pay-out of their accumulated compensatory time. 
 

d. The option of continuing the medical and dental coverage for a period of up to eighteen (18) 
months following the month in which their termination occurred, in accordance with state 
and federal laws. 

 
E. Death of an employee:  In the event of the death of an employee, the following benefits shall be 

direct deposited into the employee’s account: 
 
a. A lump sum pay-out of their accumulated and carry-over vacation balance.* 

 
b. A lump sum pay-out of floating holiday and PTO based upon the proration outlined in, 

Section VI Paid Leave, of this policy. 
 

c. A lump sum pay-out of their accumulated compensatory time. 
 

d. A lump sum pay-out of accumulated and unused sick leave to a maximum of ninety (90) 
working days.  For those employees who are eligible, up to an additional thirty (30) days of 
accumulated sick leave (beyond the 90 days) and any accumulated physical fitness bonus 
incentive for protective status personnel shall be paid to the employee’s spouse and if no 



17 

spouse is living, the employee’s estate. 
 

e. A medical plan option exclusive of Dental, may be made available to the employee’s spouse 
at their own expense, up to the time the spouse turns age sixty-five (65) or becomes eligible 
for Medicare, provided they exercise this option within thirty days of the employee’s death.  

 
f. The spouse shall have the option of continuing dental coverage for a period of eighteen (18) 

months following the month in which the employee’s death occurred, in accordance with 
state and federal laws. 

 
 
*Employees leaving with less than twelve (12) months of service shall owe the City back all vacation time used.  
 
 
**Employees who have used more floating holiday and/or PTO benefit than they were entitled pursuant to 
Section VI Paid Leave, of this policy in the last year of their employment will have an amount equal to the paid 
but unearned benefit deducted from their final pay (unless the employee leaves employment as a result of a 
physician certified disability). 



HR 
Generalist Position Dept.

Date of 
Vacancy Open Date

# of 
Openings Status

Jessie HVAC Technician PRFM 11/25/20 01/27/23 1 Application deadline: 6/04/23.
Operations Crew Leader DPW 04/17/23 04/14/23 1 Job offer accepted, start date: 5/22/23.
Administrative Support Specialist - MSB DPW 04/22/23 04/10/23 1 Background pending on top candidate.
Engineering Technician DPW 04/03/23 03/30/23 1 Panel interviews: 5/24/23.
Traffic Engineering Specialist DPW 03/16/23 03/03/23 1 Determining next steps.
Arborist DPW 01/06/23 01/05/23 1 References pending on top candidate.
Operator II - Street DPW 05/28/23 05/15/23 1 Internal application deadline: 5/28/23.
Service Person CEA & Parking DPW 05/18/23 05/18/23 1 Application deadline: 6/04/23.
Relief Operator - Wastewater Utilities 02/28/23 03/03/23 1 Panel interviews: 5/18/23.
Wastewater Plant Operator Utilities 06/26/23 04/06/23 1 Determining next steps.
Part Time Utility Worker - VT VT 09/30/21 10/05/21 N/A Application deadline: 6/04/23.                                                                     
Bus Driver VT Multiple N/A 8 Application deadline: 6/04/23.
Part-Time Bus Driver VT N/A N/A N/A Application deadline: 6/04/23.                                                                        

Allison Police Officer Police N/A N/A Elig. PFC interviews: 5/22/23 & 6/26/23.
Communication Specialist - .5 FTE Police 06/06/23 04/26/23 1 Panel interviews: 5/30/23.
Police Community Engagement Specialist Police 03/14/23 05/05/23 1 Application deadline: 5/21/23.
Community Service Officer Police Multiple 05/18/23 1 Application deadline: 6/11/23.
Firefighter Fire Multiple 09/03/22 2 Job offer accepted, start date: 5/22/23.
HVAC/Building Inspector CED 01/14/23 01/05/23 1 Panel interview: 5/19/23.
ERP Systems Specialist IT 02/04/23 02/10/23 1 Application deadline open.
Library Page Clerk - Regular Part-time Library 04/30/23 04/05/23 4 2 job offers accepted, start date: 6/05/23.

29 1

HR 
Generalist Position Dept.

Date of 
Vacancy

# of 
Openings

Allison Library Clerk - Regular Part-Time Library 07/01/22 1
Coordinated Entry Specialist CED 04/03/23 1

Jessie Transit Maintenance Operations Supervisor VT 03/25/23 1

3

Updates thru 5/18/2023
Recruitment Status Report

Total Positions Open: Total Eligibility Lists:
Positions on Hold

Total Positions On Hold:

Internal transfer. Position on hold.

Status

Determining next steps.
Department evaluating position.



Note: Per Recruitment Policy, part-time non-benefited positions do not require authorization outside of the department. The Mayor has asked departments to scrutinize.


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_Minutes 4-27-23
	0002_1_Salary Administration Policy 2023 SB
	0003_1_Fringe Benefit Policy 2023 SB
	0004_1_RSR 5.18.23

